
 

Strategic Planning Request for Proposal 
 

Background: Since 2013, IPC has been working to engage congregations in watershed restoration. We facilitate 
and track action in three primary categories: education, hands-on caring/restoration, and legislative advocacy. 
Our current footprint consists of approximately 200 congregations that have taken measurable action, another 
150 congregations that are “in our orbit”, and roughly 2,000 individuals who have opted-in to receive our 
electronic communications. In the past 4 years we have explored several strategies and programs to engage 
congregations, and now IPC is at a pivot point where we can leverage what we have learned to strengthen our 
work. The board is committed to this process of developing a new strategic plan in 2018. 

IPC has been operating under a strategic plan that was developed in 2015, and covered the 2016-2018 time 
frame. That plan was largely an operations plan, which was appropriate for the young organization at that time 
(we can provide a copy of the plan upon request). Within the past year, the Board of IPC has undergone 
transformation in its understanding of its role and responsibilities. It formed 5 committees and assigned 
leadership to those committees: Governance, Finance, Programs, Advocacy, and Executive. The committees 
are at varying degrees of capacity and effectiveness. All are required to report out at the board meetings. The 
board currently consists of 9 members, all of whom will be returning in 2018. In addition, it is possible that the 
board will recruit 1-2 additional members in the first quarter of 2018.  

The staff consists of one full-time executive director and three part-time program staff. All staff work from 
their home offices and do not regularly work at a centralized office. Two of the staff meet in office space in 
Annapolis one day per week. 

The Board Chair and Executive Director have articulated three primary goals for the planning process that 
address some questions that repeatedly come up in board discussions and slow down IPC’s progress.  

1. Clarify IPC’s niche in Chesapeake Bay efforts. What would happen if IPC ceased to exist? How do we 

measure our impact? 

2. Develop a more visionary model for congregational engagement that emphasizes IPC’s brand and core 

strengths. How will this model be financially viable? 

3. Discern the need for IPC to expand its footprint in order achieve our vision. How can IPC’s work be 

replicated in new regions in a financially sustainable way? Which new regions should we expand into?   

We are looking to an outside consultant to facilitate the process through which the board will answer the 
questions above and develop strategies to achieve our goals. We expect this consultant to be an excellent 
process facilitator who holds themselves accountable for the achieving the expected outcome.  

Scope of Work  

 Overview of Project - This will be a 3-year strategic plan for 2018 through 2020.  

 Goals – As stated above, the Board Chair and Executive Director have articulated three primary goals for 
this process.  Part of the scope of work will be to spend some initial time with the Board Chair and 
Executive Director to reflect on these goals and ensure they cover the most pressing needs for IPC.   

 Deliverable - The final product will be a 3-year strategic plan, including action plan and financial strategies 
for the first 18 months. The plan will be something the Board and Executive Director are very excited to 
jump into and start working on. The process itself will not leave the board exhausted, but rather will 
energize us for the work ahead. The plan shall include the following components: Organizational Identity, 



 

Strategic Plan, and Implementation Plan. The implementation plan will address financial strategies for 
meeting the articulated strategic goals. The implementation plan shall cover the first 12-18 months of the 
strategic plan. It will be the responsibility of IPC’s staff and board to return to the strategic plan every 9 to 
12 months to develop updated implementation plans for the remainder of the plan timeframe.   

 Board Interaction - The full board will make itself available to the consultant for strategy discussions at an 
overnight board retreat in February. Two additional board meetings are also scheduled during the time 
frame of the planning process, and if needed, portions of those meetings could be devoted to the 
consultant for group discussion. The schedule of these in-person board gatherings are: 

o January 18 – Board meeting in Columbia, MD 3-6 pm (consultant may utilize up to one hour if 
necessary) 

o Board Retreat – February 23/24 in Columbia, MD, beginning at 2 pm on Friday Feb 23rd and 
concluding at 5 pm Saturday Feb 24th. A one-hour portion will be devoted to board business. All 
meals and accommodations included for the consultant.  

o June 14 – Board meeting in Columbia, MD 3-6 pm (consultant may utilize up to one hour if 
necessary) 

The individual board members will also make themselves available for one-on-one phone conversations as 
needed during the planning process.  

 Task Force - IPC’s Board will designate a task force to work closely with the consultant. The task force is 
meant to serve as representatives of the larger board, and will facilitate decisions on fine-detail of the plan 
and offers a sub-group with which the consultant can communicate more regularly and easily. This task 
force will include 3 board members and the Executive Director. Additional part-time staff from the 
organization will be made available as needed for discussions, but will not be standing members of the 
task force.  

 Document Drafting - The writing of the document itself will be led by the consultant. IPC’s Executive 
Director and other board members will contribute if needed by drafting specific sections, editing, and 
feedback. It will be the responsibility of the consultant to shepherd the document preparation process.  

 Stakeholder input – Optional – In addition to the board and staff, the board would like to consider the 
input from up to 10 stakeholders and up to 5 current and/or potential funders. IPC will provide electronic 
introductions to these stakeholders for the consultant. The goal of the stakeholder input is to help shape 
board thinking on how we serve our audience and how marketable our services/strategies are. This 
stakeholder input could take place during the planning process, or in the form of “field testing” the plan, or 
parts thereof, once a draft is ready. We leave it up to the consultant to discern the extent of stakeholder 
input and methodology that is most appropriate to achieve our goals and allow us to stay within our 
budget. The consultant is also welcome to omit the stakeholder input component if they prefer to justify 
alternative approaches for helping us achieve our goals.  

 Graphic Design – IPC will handle the graphic presentation and branding of the document.  

 Timeline - The planning and discussions will take place during the first two quarters of 2018 and the plan 
will be substantially completed by July 15, 2018. We are required to submit a mostly-ready plan to one of 
our funders, which is why the July 15th deadline is non-negotiable. The final draft of the plan will be ready 
for board adoption by September 1, 2018. Proposals will be accepted until December 15, 2017. IPC will 
select and engage a consultant by December 31, 2017. 

Proposal 

Consultant shall prepare a written proposal that includes the following: 



 

 Description of the approach and methodology that the consultant will use to help IPC’s board arrive at 
answers to our three pressing questions, outlined above in “Background”. How will you go about 
answering these questions and how clear will the answers be at the end of the process? The description 
should discuss strategies for decision-making, how the retreat time and board meetings will be utilized, 
and expectations of the task force. 

 We welcome suggestions for additional strategies that should be employed during the strategic planning 
process that are not specifically asked for in this request for proposal. We invite you to justify those 
strategies in your proposal. While we have put a lot of thought into this request for proposal, we recognize 
that you are the expert, not us. We invite your guidance to set us on a path to success! 

 The proposal should tell us what sets you apart from other consultants, and how do you deliver quality? 
While cost is important to us as a small nonprofit, and timeliness will enable us to move forward with 
decisions, doing this right is most important to us. Convince us that you have a proven track record of 
doing this right. 

 The cost of the proposal should range from $8,000 to $15,000, and should explicitly state that this is a 
“not-to-exceed” cost. Proposals exceeding $15,000 will not be considered. This includes all personnel time, 
fringe, travel, and any other expenses incurred in order to complete the strategic plan. If it is necessary to 
place more of the document-writing responsibilities on IPC staff in order to stay within this budget, you are 
welcome to clarify that in the proposal. Please be clear about what is expected of IPC staff and what is 
expected of your firm.  

 Please provide a statement about the qualifications of the firm as well as the main consultant who will be 
assigned to this project if awarded. A resume for that consultant as well as their most recent clients should 
be included. 

 Please provide at least one example (more are welcome) of a client you have served that was similar to IPC 
in terms of its state of development as budget. Tell us the story about that project: How did that strategic 
planning process go and what were the end deliverables received by the client? What are you most proud 
of that project? Describe how that strategic plan helped that client move forward successfully? Where is 
that organization today (and how long ago did you preform that work)? 

 Please provide a few references of former clients of similar size/scope as IPC who we can talk to.  

 Proposals will be accepted through December 15th. We hope to make a decision and engage the 
consultant by December 31st so that they can begin their work immediately in 2018.  

 IPC will choose a consultant based on these factors, in order of importance: 
o Project approach and methodology 
o Primary consultant’s experience and success 
o Firm’s experience and success 
o Cost 
o Understanding of IPC, context, and task at hand 

 Proposals shall be submitted via email to Jodi Rose at jodi@interfaithchesapeake.org. If you have 
questions, please contact Jodi on her mobile phone: 317-213-4356. This is a closed solicitation; 
approximately 5-10 consultants will be invited to submit proposals.  


